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44  | ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of St. Lucia 
Electricity Services Limited (the Company), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at December 31, 2008, and the statements of changes in 
equity, income, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and consistently 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements 
based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 
2008, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

KPMG Eastern Caribbean
March 27, 2009

Castries, St. Lucia

P.O. Box 1101 	 Morgan Building 	 Telephone: +1 (758] 453 1471
Castries	  L’Anse Road 	 Telephone: +1 (758) 453 0625
St. Lucia 	 Castries 	 Telefax: +1 (758) 453 6507
	 St. Lucia 	 email: kpmg@kpmg.lc
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Balance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance SheetBalance Sheet | December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2008 | | with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 with comparative figures for 2007 

(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

NotesNotesNotesNotes 20082008 200720072007
Restated (Note 30)Restated (Note 30)Restated (Note 30)Restated (Note 30)Restated (Note 30)Restated (Note 30)

AssetsAssetsAssetsAssetsAssetsAssets
Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current 
Property, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipmentProperty, plant and equipment 6 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,7236 $ 298,774,746 299,106,723
Intangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assets 77 3,723,6793,723,6793,723,6793,723,6793,723,679 4,017,5664,017,5664,017,5664,017,5664,017,566
Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset Retirement benefit asset 88 8,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,000 7,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,000
Available-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assetsAvailable-for-sale financial assets 9 5,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,5755,642,575 3,452,1033,452,1033,452,1033,452,1033,452,1033,452,1033,452,1033,452,1033,452,103
Total non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assetsTotal non-current assets 316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392316,988,000 314,344,392
CurrentCurrentCurrentCurrentCurrentCurrentCurrentCurrent
InventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventories 10 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,00210 15,739,800 14,003,002
Trade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivablesTrade and other receivables 11 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,62811 41,939,612 46,266,628
Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents 1212121212 10,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,37410,847,374 3,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,9363,148,936
Total current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assetsTotal current assets 68,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,56668,526,786 63,418,566
TOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETSTOTAL ASSETS $$$$$$$ 385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958385,514,786 377,762,958

Equity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilitiesEquity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equityShareholders’ equity
Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital Share capital 13 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,79213 $ 80,162,792 80,162,792
Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings Retained earnings 64,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,10464,462,307 58,330,104
Total equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholdersTotal equity attributable to shareholders 144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896144,625,099 138,492,896
Retirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserveRetirement benefit reserve 88 8,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,0008,847,000 7,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,0007,768,000
Total shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equityTotal shareholders’ equity 153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896153,472,099 146,260,896

Liabilities
Non-Current
Borrowings 14 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,84114 110,753,706 107,287,841
Consumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer depositsConsumer deposits 15 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,78915 11,682,301 11,310,789
Deferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilitiesDeferred tax liabilities 16 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,01816 28,695,406 30,580,018
Consumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributionsConsumer contributions 17171717 28,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,83928,428,097 24,546,839
Total non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilitiesTotal non-current liabilities 179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487179,559,510 173,725,487
Current
BorrowingsBorrowingsBorrowings 14 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,88714 16,743,060 22,083,887
Trade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payablesTrade and other payables 18 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,70218 25,748,467 25,276,702
Income tax payableIncome tax payableIncome tax payableIncome tax payableIncome tax payable 1,740,4971,740,4971,740,4971,740,4971,740,4971,740,4971,740,4971,740,497 1,247,3511,247,3511,247,351
Dividends payableDividends payableDividends payableDividends payableDividends payable 8,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,1538,251,153 9,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,6359,168,635
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The accompanying notes on pages 49 to 83 are an integral part of these financial statements

 Notes
          Stated      

Capital
Retained 
Earnings

Retirement 
Benefit Reserve Total

Balance at December 31, 2006 $  80,162,792 53,932,292 2,850,000 136,945,084

Prior years’ adjustment   - (1,282,200) 4,274,000 2,991,800

Balance at December 31, 2006 as restated 30  80,162,792 52,650,092 7,124,000 139,936,884

Profit for the year as previously reported - 28,858,183 - 28,858,183

Prior years’ adjustment 30 - 154,000 - 154,000

Profit for the year as restated - 29,012,183 - 29,012,183

Transfer to retirement benefit reserve 30 - (644,000) 644,000 -

Transfer of  tariff reduction rebate - (805,958) - (809,958)

Transfer to tariff reduction reserve    19 - (5,239,813) - (5,239,813)

Ordinary dividends 20 - (16,642,400) - (16,642,400)

Balance at December 31, 2007 as restated  80,162,792 58,330,104 7,768,000 146,260,896

Profit for the year - 24,869,338 - 24,869,338

Transfer to retirement benefit reserve - (1,079,000) 1,079,000 -

Transfer of  tariff reduction rebate 19 - 473,945 - 473,945

Transfer to tariff reduction reserve 19 - (2,427,280) - (2,427,280)

Ordinary dividends 20 - (15,704,800) - (15,704,800)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $    80,162,792 64,462,307 8,847,000 153,472,099
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Notes 2008 2007
Restated (Note 30)

Revenue

Energy sales $ 244,669,087 231,676,426
Fuel surcharge recovered 57,448,282 10,178,415
Other revenue 1,082,005 657,327
  303,199,374 242,512,168

Operating expenses

Diesel generation 146,862,856 132,861,048
Transmission and distribution 30,590,946 30,400,927
Fuel surcharge 25 57,914,734 10,845,671
 235,368,536 174,107,646
 
Gross income 67,830,838 68,404,522
Administrative expenses (23,464,445 ) (23,216,812 )

Operating profit 44,366,393 45,187,710
Other gains 21 462,282 150,812

Profit before finance costs and taxation 44,828,675 45,338,522
Finance costs (8,997,221 ) (7,201,036 )

Profit before taxation 35,831,454 38,137,486
Taxation 22 (10,962,116 ) (9,125,303 )

Net profit for the year $ 24,869,338 29,012,183

Earnings per share 23 $ 2.12 2.48
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	 Notes 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities  Restated (Note 30) 
Profit before taxation $ 35,831,454 38,137,486
Adjustments for:

Depreciation		   6 28,456,497 26,652,824
Amortisation of intangible assets		   7 1,011,936 518,166
Finance costs expensed	 8,997,221 7,201,036
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	                       21 (189,527 ) (39,205 )
Amortization of consumer contributions	                              17 (1,534,186 ) (1,527,675 )
Pension benefits (1,079,000 ) (644,000 )
Adjustment to  plant and equipment                                             6   (505,574 ) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 70,988,821 70,298,632

Change in trade and other receivables 4,327,016 (11,949,245 )
Change in inventories (1,736,798 ) 1,277,863
Change in trade and other payables 471,765 4,091,652
Cash generated from operations 74,050,804 63,718,902
Interest received 52,061 306,221
Finance costs paid (9,233,050 ) (7,506,045 )
Income tax paid (12,353,582 ) (5,714,877 )

Net cash from operating activities 52,516,233 50,804,201

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of available for sale financial asset (2,000,000 ) (764,674 )
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment                                    6 (27,625,711 ) (47,393,087 )
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 196,292 39,260
Acquisition of intangible assets                                                         7 (718,049 ) (4,400,700 )
Net cash used in investing activities (30,147,468 ) (52,519,201 )

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 20,000,000 45,163,432
Repayment of borrowings (21,881,666 ) (22,605,796 )
Dividends paid (16,622,282 ) (18,380,527 )
Decrease in tariff reduction reserve 473,945 (805,958 )
Transfer of tariff reduction rebate   				         19 (2,427,280 ) (5,239,813 )
Consumer contributions received                                                     17 5,415,444 3,596,988
Consumer deposits received net 371,512 1,003,286
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (14,670,327 ) 2,731,612

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,698,438 1,016,612
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,148,936 2,132,324
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 10,847,374 3,148,936



|  49ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
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(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

1.		 Reporting Entity

		 St. Lucia Electricity Services Limited (the Company) was 
incorporated under the laws of St. Lucia on November 9, 1964 
and re-registered as a public company on August 11, 1994.  The 
Company was also re-registered under the Companies Act of 
St. Lucia on October 22, 1997.  The Company operates under 
the Electricity Supply Act, 1994 (as amended), and has an 
exclusive licence for the exercise and performance of functions 
relating to the supply of electricity in St. Lucia. The Company 
is listed on the Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange.  The 
Company’s registered office is situated at Sans Soucis, John 
Compton Highway, Castries, St. Lucia.

2.		 Basis of preparation

(a)		 Statement of compliance
		 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

		 The financial statements were approved for issue by the board 
of directors on March 27, 2009.

(b)		 Basis of measurement
		 The financial statements have been prepared using the historical 

cost basis except for available-for-sale financial assets that are 
measured at fair value.

	
		 The methods used to measure fair value are discussed further 

in note 4.

(c)		 Functional and presentation currency
		 These financial statements are presented in Eastern Caribbean 

dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.  All 
financial information presented in Eastern Caribbean dollars 
has been rounded to the nearest dollar.

(d)		 Use of estimates and judgements
		 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses.  Actual results may differ from those estimates.  

		 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and 
in any future periods affected.

		 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation 
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements is included in the 
following notes: 

	 •	Note 3 (f): Measurement of defined benefit obligations.
	 •	Note 3 (g): Estimation of unbilled sales and fuel surcharge.
	 •	Note 4: Determining fair values.
	 •	Note 27: Valuation of financial instruments 

3.		 Significant Accounting Policies
	
		 The accounting policies set out below have been applied 

consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements.

(a)		 Foreign currency
		 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the 

Company’s functional currency at the foreign exchange rates 
at the date of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange 
rate at that date.  The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary 
items is the difference between amortised cost in
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3.		 Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(a)		 Foreign currency (Cont’d)
		 the functional currency at the beginning of the period, 

adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, 
and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the 
exchange rate at the end of the period.  Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign exchange currencies that 
are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value 
was determined.  Foreign currency differences arising on 
retranslation are recognized in the statement of income except 
for differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale 
instruments, a financial liability designated as a hedge of the 
net investment in a foreign operation, or qualifying cash flow 
hedges which are recognized directly in equity. 

(b)		 Financial instruments
(i)		 Non-derivative financial instruments
		 Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in 

equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and 
cash equivalents, loans, trade and other payables, consumer 
deposits and consumer contributions.

	
		 Non-derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at 

fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit 
or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent 
to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are 
measured as described below.

		 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits.  
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management are included 
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose 
of the statement of cash flows.

		 Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in 
note 3 (h).

		 Trade Receivables
		 Trade receivables are carried initially at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost less a provision for 
impairment.  A provision for impairment of trade receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that the Company 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the 
original terms of the receivable.  The amount of the provision 
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the effective interest rate.  The amount of the provision is 
recognised in the statement of income. Trade receivables, being 
short term, are not discounted.

		
		 Trade and Other Payables
		 Liabilities for trade and other payables which are normally 

settled on 30 – 90 day terms and  conditions are carried at 
cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in 
the future for goods and services received whether or not billed 
to the Company.

		 Borrowings 
		 Borrowings are recognized initially as the proceeds are received 

and are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs 
incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised 
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement 
of income over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest rate method.

		 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the 
Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

		 Consumer Deposits
		 Given the long-term nature of the customer relationship, 

customer deposits are shown in the balance sheet as non-
current liabilities (i.e. not likely to be repaid within twelve 
months of the balance sheet date).
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3.		 Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(b)		 Financial instruments (Cont’d)
i) 		 Non-derivative financial instruments (Cont’d)

		 Consumer Contributions
		 In certain specified circumstances, consumers requiring line 

extensions are required to contribute the estimated capital cost 
of the extensions.  These contributions are amortised over the 
estimated useful lives of the relevant capital cost at an annual 
rate of 5%.  The annual amortisation of consumer contributions 
is deducted from the depreciation charge provided in respect 
of the capital cost of these line extensions.  Contributions in 
excess of the applicable capital cost of line extensions are 
recorded as other revenue in the period in which they are 
completed.  The capital costs of consumer line extensions are 
included in property, plant and equipment.

 	
		 Available-for-sale financial assets
		 The Company’s investment in equity securities and certain debt 

securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair 
value and changes therein, other than impairment losses (see 
note 3(e)), and foreign exchange gains and losses on available-
for-sale monetary items (see note 3(a)), are recognized directly 
in equity.  When an investment is derecognized, the cumulative 
gain or loss in equity is transferred to the statement of 
income.  

(ii)		 Share capital
		 Ordinary shares
		 Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs 

directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share 
options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any 
tax effects.

(c)		 Property, Plant and Equipment
(i)		 Recognition and measurement

		 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

		 Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset.  The cost of self-constructed assets 
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition 
for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing 
the items and restoring the site on which they are located.  
Cost also may include transfers from equity of any gain or loss 
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases 
of property, plant and equipment.  Purchased software that 
is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is 
capitalised as part of that equipment.  

		 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

		 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and are recognized net within “other gains” in the 
statement of income. 

 
(ii)		 Subsequent Expenditure
		 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and 

equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item 
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be 
measured reliably.  The carrying amount of the replaced part 
is derecognized.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 
property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement 
of income as incurred. 
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3.		 Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(c)		 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

(iii)		 Depreciation
		 Depreciation is recognized in the statement of income on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part 
of an item of property, plant and equipment.  Leased assets are 
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful 
lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.  Land and rights 
are not depreciated.  No depreciation is provided on work-in-
progress until the assets involved have been completed and 
available for use.  

		 The annual rates of depreciation for the current and comparative 
periods are as follows:

		 • Building		  2 1/2 - 12 1/2% per annum
		 • Plant and machinery		  5 - 14% per annum
		 • Motor vehicles	             20 - 33 1/3% per annum
		 • Furniture and fittings	             10 - 25% per annum
		 • Computer software and hardware     12 1/2 - 25% per annum

		 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

(d)		 Inventories
		 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and replacement 

value.  The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average 
principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs 
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and 
condition. Allowance is made for slow-moving and damaged 
goods. Goods in transit are stated at invoice cost.

e) 		 Impairment 

(i) 		 Financial assets
		 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A 
financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence 
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on 
the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

		 An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured 
at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An 
impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset 
is calculated by reference to its fair value.

		 Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment 
on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed 
collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

 		 All impairment losses are recognised in the statement of income. 
Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial 
asset recognised previously in equity is transferred to the statement 
of income.

	
		 An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related 

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost and 
available-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the 
reversal is recognised in the statement of income. For available-
for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is 
recognised directly in equity.

	 	The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other 
than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to

		 determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 
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3.		 Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)                   
e)		 Impairment (Cont’d)

(ii) 		 Non-financial assets
		 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 

is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For 
the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together 
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating 
unit”). 

		 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of 
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the 
statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in respect 
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and 
then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the 
unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

	
		 In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior 

periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

(f) 		 Employee benefits
(i) 		 Defined benefit plans
		 A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other 

than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation 
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated 
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service 
costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The 
discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government 
securities that have maturity dates approximating the terms 
of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the 
same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. 
The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation 
results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is 
limited to the net total of any unrecognised past service costs 
and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

	
		 When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the 

increased benefit relating to past service by employees is 
recognised in the statement of income on a straight-line basis 
over the average period until the benefits become vested. To 
the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is 
recognised immediately in the statement of income.

	
		 The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising 

from defined benefit plans directly in equity immediately.

(ii)		 Pension benefits assumptions
		 The present value of the pension obligations depends on a 

number of factors that are determined by independent qualified 
		 actuaries using a number of assumptions.  The assumptions 

used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include 
the expected long-term rate of return on the relevant plans
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3.		 Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(f) 		 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
 
(ii)		 Pension benefits assumptions (Cont’d)
		 assets and the discount rate.  Any changes in these assumptions 

will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations. 

		 The expected return on plan assets assumption is determined on 
a uniform basis taking into consideration long-term historical 
returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term 
obligations.

		 The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the 
end of each year.  This is the interest rate that should be used 
to determine the present value of the estimated future cash

		 outflows expected to be required to settle the pension 
obligations.  In determining the appropriate discount rate, the 
Company considers the interest rates of the Government bonds 
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will 
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the 
terms of the related pension liability.

		 Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in 
part on current market conditions.  Additional information is 
disclosed in Note 8.

 
(iii) 		 Termination benefits
		 Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the 

entity is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility 
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate 
employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide 
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage 
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary 
redundancies are recognised as an expense if the entity has 
made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable 
that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances 
can be estimated reliably.

(g)		 Revenue recognition
		 Sale of energy
		 Revenue from energy sales is based on meter readings, which 

are carried out on a rotational basis throughout each month.  
A provision of 46% of the current month’s billings, excluding 
the fuel surcharge, is made to record unbilled energy sales at 
the end of each month.  This estimate is reviewed periodically 
to assess reasonableness and adjusted where required. The 
provision for unbilled sales is included in accrued income.

		 In addition to the normal tariff rates charged for energy sales, 
a fuel surcharge is calculated which is based on the difference 
between the cost of fuel used to generate energy sales 
in the current month and the average fuel price for the 12 
months preceding January of the current year. The surcharge 
is recovered by applying the month’s surcharge rate to units 
billed in the following month. The provision for unbilled fuel 
surcharge is included in accrued income.

		 Interest income
		 Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using 

the effective interest method.

(h) 		 Finance income and expenses
		 Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested 

(including available-for-sale financial assets), gains on the 
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, and changes in 
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss that are recognised in the statement of income. Interest 
income is recognised as it accrues in statement of income, 
using the effective interest method. 

		 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and 
impairment losses recognised on financial assets. All borrowing costs 
are recognised in the statement of income using the effective 
interest method. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported 
on a net basis.
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3.		 Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
 (i) 		 Income tax
		 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income 

tax expense is recognised in the statement of income except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, 
in which case it is recognised in equity.

		 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income 
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years.

		 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, 
providing for temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 

		 Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary 
differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating 
to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to 
the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for 
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition 
of goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to the temporary differences when 
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate 
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to 
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their 
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

		 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised.

(j) 		 Earnings per share
		 The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for 

its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period. 

(k) 		 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
		 A number of new standards, amendments to standards 

and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 
December 31, 2008 and have not been applied in preparing 
these financial statements:
•	 IFRS 8 Operating Segments introduces the “management 

approach” to segment reporting. IFRS 8, which becomes 
mandatory for the Company’s 2009 financial statements, 
will require the disclosure of segment information 
based on the internal reports regularly reviewed by the 
Company’s Financial Controller in order to assess each 
segment’s performance and to allocate resources to them. 
Currently the Company has no reportable segments.

•	 Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs removes the option to 
expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity 
capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset as part of the cost of that asset. The revised IAS 
23 will become mandatory for the Company’s 2009 
financial statements. In accordance with the transitional 
provisions the Company will apply the revised IAS 23 to 
qualifying assets for which capitalisation of borrowing 
costs commences on or after the effective date.
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3.		  Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(k) 		  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (Cont’d)

•	 Revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
(2007) introduces the term total comprehensive income, 
which represents changes in equity during a period other 
than those changes resulting from transactions with 
owners in their capacity as owners. Total comprehensive 
income may be presented in either a single statement of 
comprehensive income (effectively combining both the 
income statement and all non-owner changes in equity 
in a single statement), or in an income statement and a 
separate statement of comprehensive income. Revised 
IAS 1, which becomes mandatory for the Company’s 
2009 financial statements, is expected to have an 
impact on the presentation of the financial statements. 

•	 Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements – Puttable Financial Instruments and 
Obligations Arising on Liquidation requires puttable 
instruments, and instruments that impose on the entity 
an obligation to deliver to another party a pro rata share 
of the net assets of the entity only on liquidation, to 
be classified as equity if certain conditions are met. 
The amendments, which become mandatory for the 
Company’s 2009 financial statements with retrospective 
application required, are not expected to have any 
impact on the financial statements.

•	 Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment – Vesting 
Conditions and Cancellations clarifies the definition 
of vesting conditions, introduces the concept of non-
vesting conditions, requires non-vesting conditions to 
be reflected in grant-date fair value and provides the 
accounting treatment for non-vesting conditions and 
cancellations. The amendments to IFRS 2, which will 

become mandatory for the Company’s 2009 financial 
statements with retrospective application required, 
are not expected to have any impact on the financial 
statements.

•	 IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes addresses 
the accounting by entities that operate, or otherwise 
participate in, customer loyalty programmes for their 
customers. It relates to customer loyalty programmes 
under which the customer can redeem credits for 
awards such as free or discounted goods or services. 
IFRIC 13, which becomes mandatory for the Company’s 
2009 financial statements, is not expected to have any 
impact on the financial statements.

4.	 Determination of Fair Values
	 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures 

require the determination of fair value, for both financial 
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been 
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based 
on the following methods. When applicable, further information 
about the assumptions made in determining fair values is 
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(i)	 Investments in equity and debt securities
	 The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale 
financial assets is determined by reference to their quoted bid 
price at the reporting date. 

(ii)	 Trade and other receivables
	 The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the 

present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market 
rate of interest at the reporting date.
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4.	 Determination of Fair Values (Cont’d)
(iii)	 Non-derivative financial liabilities
	 Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is 

calculated based on the present value of future principal and 
interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at 
the reporting date. 

5.	 Financial Risk Management 
	 Overview
	 The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of 

financial instruments:

•	 Credit risk
•	 Liquidity risk
•	 Market risk.
	

	 This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to 
each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s 
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are 
included throughout these financial statements.

		 The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The Audit Committee assesses financial and control 
risks to the Company.  The committee reports regularly to the 
Board of Directors on their activities.

		 The Company’s risk management policies are established to 
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and 
the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training 
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a 
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations.

		 The Company’s Audit Committee oversees how management 
monitors compliance with its risk management policies and 
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

		 Credit risk

		 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a 
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from 
the Company’s receivables from customers and investment 
securities.

	
		 Trade and other receivables
		 The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the 

individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics 
of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of 
the industry and country in which customers operate, have 
less of an influence on credit risk. Geographically there is no 
concentration of credit risk. 

		 The Board of Directors has established a credit policy under 
which each new customer is analysed individually for 
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and

		 service terms and conditions are offered. These payment terms 
are stipulated under the provisions of the Electricity Supply Act 
of 1994 (as amended) and include providing discretion to the 
Company to require a deposit from any consumer as security 
for sums due from time to time. Such deposit shall not exceed 
an estimated two month’s supply of electricity. Customers 
that fail to meet the Company’s benchmark creditworthiness 
may have their electricity supply withdrawn or terminated in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act.  

			
		 More than 85 percent of the Company’s customers have been 

transacting with the Company for over four years, and losses 
have occurred infrequently. 
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5.		 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
	
		 Credit risk (Cont’d)
		 The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that 

represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables and investments. The main components 
of this allowance is a specific loss component that relates to 
individually significant exposures. The collective loss allowance 
is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for 
similar financial assets.

		 Investments
		 The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by only 

investing in liquid securities. Given these high credit ratings, 
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet 
its obligations.

	 	Liquidity risk
		 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to 

meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company’s reputation.

		 Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on 
demand to meet expected operational expenses including the 
servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential 
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be 
predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company 
maintains the following lines of credit:

•	 Two overdraft facilities of EC$5 million and EC$3 million 
which are secured. Interest is payable at the rate of 9% 
and 8% respectively. 

•	 A standby credit facility in the amount of EC$10 
Million which will be utilised to restore transmission 
and distribution lines and related assets damaged by 
hurricane and other natural disasters, should it become 
necessary. This facility is convertible into a 12-year term 
instalment loan subject to the necessary approvals. The 
interest rate is 7.41% on the credit facility and 6.5% if 
converted into a demand loan. 

		 Market risk
		 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as 

foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect 
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.

 
		 Currency risk
		 The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchases and 

borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the 
functional currency. The currency in which these transactions 
primarily are denominated is United States Dollars.  

		 Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencies that match 
the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the 
Company. 

		 The exchange rate of the Eastern Caribbean dollar (XCD) to 
the United States dollar (USD) has been formally pegged at 
XCD2.70 = USD1.00 since 1974.

		
		 Capital management

		 The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as 
to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to 
sustain future development of the business. The Board of 
Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Company 
defines as net profit after tax divided by average shareholders’ 
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5.		 Financial Risk Management (Cont’d)
		 Currency risk (Cont’d)

		 Capital management (Cont’d)
		 equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of 

dividends to ordinary shareholders.
		
		 The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher 

returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings 
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital 
position. Under the terms of the mortgage debenture agreement, 
the Company’s total debt shall not exceed its tangible net 
worth which currently comprises its share capital and retained 
earnings. 

		 There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital 
management during the year.
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6.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment comprise:

Land and Plant and Motor Furniture and Work in
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Fittings Progress Total

Cost
Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 84,325,002 429,929,027 3,529,800 9,125,836 10,920,640 537,830,305
Additions 38,610 754,159 242,180 220,682 46,137,456 47,393,087
Transfers 562,607 49,622,929 - 354,373 (50,539,909) -
Disposals - (710) (147,000) (95,502) - (243,212)
Balance at December 31, 2007 84,926,219 480,305,405 3,624,980 9,605,389 6,518,187 584,980,180
Adjustment - (1,861,426) - - 2,417,056 555,630
Additions 263,335 -              264,779 791,775 26,305,822      27,625,711
Transfers 956,028 24,703,500 - - (25,659,528) -
Disposals -            (284,998) (531,304)           (141,430) - (957,732)

Balance at December 31, 2008 86,145,582 502,862,481 3,358,455 10,255,734 9,581,537 612,203,789

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at December 31, 2006 22,930,752 226,212,192 2,966,786 7,354,060 - 259,463,790
Charge for the year 2,006,298 23,725,591 253,638 667,297 - 26,652,824
Eliminated on disposals - (710) (147,000) (95,447) - (243,157)
Balance at December 31, 2007 24,937,050 249,937,073 3,073,424 7,925,910 - 285,873,457
Adjustment 421 47,849 - 1,786 - 50,056
Charge for the year 2,017,327 25,560,687 297,835 580,648 - 28,456,497
Eliminated on disposals -           (282,218) (531,304)           (137,445) - (950,967)

Balance at December 31, 2008 26,954,798 275,263,391 2,839,955 8,370,899 - 313,429,043

Carrying amount
December 31, 2008 $ 59,190,784 227,599,090 518,500 1,884,835 9,581,537 298,774,746
December 31, 2007 $ 59,989,169 230,368,332 551,556 1,679,479 6,518,187 299,106,723
December 31, 2006 $ 61,394,250 203,716,835 563,014 1,771,776 10,920,640 278,366,515
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6.	 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
6.1		 During the current year the company effected the following balance sheet  reclassifications:
		 1.	 Expenditure incurred on wayleave rights from work-in-progress to intangible assets.  
		 2.	 Expenditure incurred on separately identified computer software from plant and machinery to intangible assets. 
		 3.	 Expenditure incurred on deferred expenses to work-in-progress.
		 The comparative figures were also reclassified to be consistent with the current year financial statement presentation.

6.2		 Borrowing costs amounting to $100,000 (2007 - $1,484,503) were capitalized during the year.

Intangible Assets

Computer Wayleave
Software rights Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2007 $ - 135,032 135,032
Additions 4,026,400 374,300 4,400,700
Balance at December 31, 2007 4,026,400 509,332 4,535,732
Additions 256,145 461,904 718,049
Balance at December 31, 2008 4,282,545 971,236 5,253,781

Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at January 1, 2007 - - -
Amortisation for the year 518,166 - 518,166
Balance at December 31, 2007 518,166 - 518,166
Amortisation for the year 1,011,936 - 1,011,936
Balance at December 31, 2008 1,530,102 - 1,530,102

Carrying amount
December 31, 2008 $ 2,752,443 971,236 3,723,679

December 31, 2007 $ 3,508,234 509,332 4,017,566

December 31, 2006 $ - 135,032 135,032

		 Wayleave rights, which have an indefinite life period, allow the company access to property owned by third parties for the purpose of 
installing and maintaining the Company’s transmission and distribution network.

7.
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8. 		 Retirement Benefit Asset

		 Grade I Employees 
		 The Company contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme with Sagicor Life Inc. for Grade I employees.

		 Grade II Employees
		 The Company contributes to a defined benefit pension scheme with Colonial Life Insurance Company for Grade II employees.

		 The most recent actuarial valuation of these two schemes is dated December 31, 2006.  The plans were valued using the “Projected Unit 
Credit” method of valuation.

	 	Grade III Employees
		 For its senior employees, the Company contributes to the regional CDC Caribbean Pension Scheme administered by Sagicor Life Inc.
		 The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan was completed January 1, 2009. The plan was valued using the “Projected Unit Credit” 

method of valuation.  

		 The principal actuarial assumptions used for all schemes were as follows:

Grade III Grades I and II
2008 2007 2008 2007

% % % %
Discount rate 7.5 7.0 7.0 7.0
Expected return on plan assets 8.0 7.0 7.5 7.5
Future salary increases 6.5 6.0 5.5 5.5
Future pension increases 3.0 3.0 0.0 0.0
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8.	 Retirement Benefit Asset (Cont’d)

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet at December 31, 2008 are determined as follows:

Grade III Grade II Grade I Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Present value of funded 
obligations $ (13,128,000 ) (12,347,000) (9,736,000) (8,982,000) (9,614,000) (9,283,000) (32,478,000) (30,612,000)

Fair value of plan assets 11,582,000 17,333,000 13,055,000 12,005,000 11,984,000 11,287,000 36,621,000 40,625,000

Unrecognised actuarial 
loss/(gain) 6,545,000 (492,000) (1,944,000) (1,918,000) 103,000 165,000 4,704,000 (2,245,000)

Defined benefit asset $ 4,999,000 4,494,000 1,375,000 1,105,000 2,473,000 2,169,000 8,847,000 7,768,000

	 The amount of $8,847,000 (2007 - $7,768,000) is recognized as a defined benefit asset as it will be available to the Company to 
fund a contribution reduction in the future.  The Trustees of the pension schemes are precluded from paying out any part of this 
amount to the Company.
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8. 	 Retirement Benefit Asset (Cont’d)
	 The movements in the defined benefit obligation for the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Grade III Grade II Grade I Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Defined benefit obligation as at January 1$ 12,347,000 11,592,000 8,982,000 8,772,000 9,283,000 8,409,000 30,612,000 28,773,000
Services and interests costs 1,650,000 1,628,000 1,071,000 1,030,000 839,000 813,000 3,560,000 3,471,000
Members’ contributions - - 178,000 170,000 245,000 192,000 423,000 362,000
Benefits paid (176,000 ) (171,000 ) (363,000 ) (422,000) (588,000) (258,000) (1,127,000) (851,000)
Expense allowance - - (36,000 ) (34,000) (43,000) (42,000) (79,000) (76,000)
Actuarial gain (693,000 ) (702,000) (96,000 ) (534,000) (122,000) 169,000 (911,000) (1,067,000)
Defined obligation benefit as at 
December 31 $ 13,128,000 12,347,000 9,736,000 8,982,000 9,614,000 9,283,000 32,478,000 30,612,000
	

	 The movements in the plans’ assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Grade III Grade II Grade I Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Fair value of plan assets at 
January 1 $ 17,333,000 15,866,000 12,005,000 10,979,000 11,287,000 10,469,000 40,625,000 37,314,000

Contributions paid - company 821,000 718,000 397,000 409,000 300,000 235,000 1,518,000 1,362,000

Contributions paid - members - - 178,000 170,000 245,000 192,000 423,000 362,000

Expected return on plan assets 1,236,000 1,130,000 896,000 819,000 843,000 790,000 2,975,000 2,739,000

Benefits paid (176,000) (171,000) (363,000) (422,000) (588,000) (258,000) (1,127,000) (851,000)

Expense allowance - - (36,000) (34,000) (43,000) (42,000) (79,000) (76,000)

Actuarial loss (7,632,000) (210,000) (22,000) 84,000 (60,000) (99,000) (7,714,000) (225,000)

Fair value of plan assets at
 December 31 $ 11,582,000 17,333,000 13,055,000 12,005,000 11,984,000 11,287,000 36,621,000 40,625,000
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8.	 Retirement Benefit Asset (Cont’d)
	 Plan assets consist of the following:

Grade III
	

Grade II Grade I Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Equity securities 98% 93% - - - - - -

Other (Deposit administration 
account) 2% 7% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

	 The actual return on plan assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows:
	

Grade III Grade II Grade I Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current service cost $ 740,000 769,000 453,000 428,000 187,000 210,000 1,380,000 1,407,000

Interest on defined 
benefit obligations 910,000 859,000 618,000 602,000 652,000 603,000 2,180,000 2,064,000
Expected return on 
plan assets (1,236,000 ) (1,130,000) (896,000) (819,000) (843,000) (790,000) (2,975,000) (2,739,000)

Amortized net gain (98,000 ) -    (48,000) (13,000) - - (146,000) (13,000)

Net pension costs $ 316,000 498,000 127,000 198,000 (4,000) 23,000 439,000 719,000
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8.	 Retirement Benefit Asset (Cont’d)
	
	 The credit is recognized in the following line items in the statement of income:

2008 2007

Administrative expenses $ 23,464,445 23,216,812
	

Movement in asset recognised in the balance sheet was as follows:

2008 2007

At beginning of year $ 7,768,000 7,125,000
Total expenses as shown above (439,000 ) (719,000 )
Contributions paid 1,518,000 1,362,000

At end of year $ 8,847,000 7,768,000

	 Actuarial gains and losses recognized directly in equity were as follows:

Grade III Grade II Grade I Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Cumulative amount as 
at January 1 $ (492,000 ) - (1,918,000) (1,314,000) 165,000 (103,000) (2,245,000) (1,417,000) 

Recognised during the 
period 7,037,000 (492,000) (26,000) (604,000) (62,000 ) 268,000 6,949,000 (828,000)

Cumulative amount as 
at December 31 $ 6,545,000 (492,000) (1,944,000) (1,918,000) 103,000 165,000 4,704,000 (2,245,000)
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8.	 Retirement Benefit Asset (Cont’d)

Historical information for Grade I, Grade II and Grade III is as follows:
 

Grade III
2005 2006 2007 2008

Defined benefit obligation - 11,592,000 12,347,000 13,128,000
Fair value of plan assets - (15,866,000 ) (17,333,000 ) (11,582,000 )
(Surplus)/deficit - (4,274,000 ) (4,986,000 ) (1,546,000 )
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities - - 702,000 (693,000 )
Experience adjustment on plan assets - -  (210,000 ) (7,632,000)

	

	 Information for 2005 is not available (see note-30).

Grade II
2005 2006 2007 2008

Defined benefit obligation 8,377,000 8,772,000 8,982,000 9,736,000
Fair value of plan assets (10,249,000 ) (10,979,000 ) (12,005,000 ) (13,055,000 )
(Surplus)/deficit (1,872,000 ) (2,207,000 ) (3,023,000 ) (3,319,000 )
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (117,000 ) (34,900 ) (534,000 ) (96,000 )
Experience adjustment on plan assets (5,000 ) (59,000 ) 84,000 (22,000 )

Grade I
2005 2006 2007 2008

Defined benefit obligation 7,741,000 8,409,000 9,283,000 9,614,000
Fair value of plan assets (9,549,000 ) (10,469,000 ) (11,287,000 ) (11,984,000 )
(Surplus)/deficit (1,808,000 ) (2,060,000 ) (2,004,000 ) (2,370,000 )
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (106,000 ) (115,000 ) 169,000 (122,000 )
Experience adjustment on plan assets (31,000 ) (31,000 ) (99,000 ) (60,000)
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Available-for-sale Financial Asset

2008 2007
Securities: available-for sale

At beginning of year $ 3,452,103 2,687,429
Additions for year 2,190,472 764,674
At end of year $ 5,642,575 3,452,103

	
	 There were no disposals or impairment provisions with respect to the available-for-sale financial asset in 2008.
	
	 The available-for-sale financial asset as at December 31, 2008 has a stated interest rate of 4.86% (2007 – 5.05%).
	
	 The Company’s exposure to credit, currency and interest rate risks related to the available-for-sale financial asset is disclosed in 

note 27.

	 The Company has established a “Self Insurance Fund” to assist in financing risk exposures on certain assets that are under-insured 
due to the non-availability of the relevant cover or prohibitive pricing.  The Company will be setting aside funds on an annual 
basis and has, at December 31, 2008, subscribed for US$2.083m, 104,167.11 units (2007 – US$1.275m, 63,732.08 units) in a 
“US Dollar Money Market Fund” established by the Unit Trust Corporation of Trinidad and Tobago.  The effective interest rate at 
December 31, 2008 was 4.86% (2007 - 5.05%).

9.
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10.	 Inventories

2008 2007

Fuel inventories $ 3,130,863 1,792,459
Generation spare parts 7,384,013 7,521,508
Transmission, distribution and other spares 7,732,402 6,403,821
Gross inventories 18,247,278 15,717,788
Less:  provision for impairment of inventories (2,507,478 ) (1,714,786 )

$ 15,739,800 14,003,002

11.	 Trade and Other Receivables	

2008 2007

Trade receivables due from related parties $ 3,991,260 3,113,154
Other trade receivables 31,196,900 29,573,561
Less:  provision for impairment of trade receivables (4,637,186 ) (4,735,190 )
Trade receivables, net 30,550,974 27,951,525

Other receivables 1,519,415 3,072,904
Less:  provision for impairment of other receivables - (442,987 )
Other receivables, net 1,519,415 2,629,917

Accrued income 8,917,746 14,609,832
Prepayments 951,477 1,075,354

9,869,223 15,685,186
$ 41,939,612 46,266,628

	
	 The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are disclosed 

in note 27.

12.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 
2008 2007

Cash at bank and in hand $ 10,847,374 3,148,936
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13.	 Share Capital
	

2008 2007

Authorised:
Voting ordinary shares 15,000,000 15,000,000

Non-voting ordinary shares 800,000 800,000

2008 2007

Issued and fully paid
11,200,000 (2007 – 11,200,000) voting ordinary shares $ 77,562,792 77,562,792
520,000 (2007 – 520,000) non-voting ordinary shares 2,600,000 2,600,000
	 $ 80,162,792 80,162,792

14.	 Borrowings

	 This comprises:
	 Notes 2008 2007

Current
Bank overdraft $ 4,442 2,381,447
Bank borrowings 8,730,760 11,658,777
Related parties	 24 8,007,858 8,043,663

16,743,060 22,083,887

Non-current
Bank borrowings 46,156,172 34,900,678
Related parties	 24 64,597,534 72,387,163

110,753,706 107,287,841
Total borrowings $ 127,496,766 129,371,728

	
	 Borrowings include liabilities amounting to $127,024,089 (2007 - $120,258,718) and the bank overdraft, which are secured by 

hypothecary obligations and mortgage debentures creating fixed charges over all immovable property and floating charges over 
all other assets, all ranking pari passu pursuant to a security sharing agreement, and assignment of insurance policies.  Also 
included in borrowings are loans guaranteed by the Government of St. Lucia amounting to $6,065,014 (2007 - $9,113,010).



|  71ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements | December 31, 2008

(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

14.	 Borrowings (Cont’d)

	 The weighted average effective rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: 
2008 2007

% %

Bank overdraft 9.00 9.00

Bank borrowings 6.07 6.07

Related parties			   7.37 7.37

Maturity of non-current borrowings:

2008 2007

Between 1 and 2 years $ 32,506,038 28,893,471
Between 2 and 5 years 32,195,567 31,213,149
Over 5 years 46,052,101 47,181,221

$ 110,753,706 107,287,841

The Company’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency, and liquidity risks related to borrowings is disclosed in note 27.

15.	 Consumer Deposits

Consumers requesting energy connections are required to pay a deposit that is refundable when service is no longer required.  
Interest accrues on these deposits at a rate of 3% per annum at December 31, 2008 (2007 – 3% per annum).  Accrued interest of 
$2,990,988 (2007 - $3,158,560) is included in consumer deposits.

16.	 Deferred Tax Liabilities

	 Deferred tax liability is calculated in full on temporary differences under the balance sheet liability method using a principal tax 
rate of 30% (2007 – 30%).  The movement on the deferred tax liability account is as follows:

2008 2007

At beginning of year $ 30,580,018 31,146,238
Reversed during the year (1,884,612 ) (566,220 )
At end of year $ 28,695,406 30,580,018
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16.	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are attributed to the following items:

2008 2007

Property, plant and equipment $ 26,041,307 28,249,618
Pensions and retirement benefit asset 2,654,099 2,330,400

$ 28,695,406 30,580,018

17.	 Consumer Contributions

2008 2007

At beginning of year $ 24,546,839 22,477,526
Contributions received 5,415,444 3,596,988
Amortisation for the year (1,534,186 ) (1,527,675 )
At end of year $ 28,428,097 24,546,839

18.	 Trade and Other Payables

2008 2007

Trade payables $ 9,215,876 9,120,049
Accrued expenses 9,597,714 7,149,942
Other payables 6,934,169 8,922,475
Related parties - shareholders 708 84,236

$ 25,748,467 25,276,702

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risks related to trade and other payables is disclosed in note 27.

19.	 Tariff Reduction Reserve

	 Under the provisions of the Electricity Supply Amendment Act Nos. 12 of 2006 and 13 of 2006, a new mechanism is in effect 
for the computation of the Allowable Rate of Return and is based on a predetermined range of Return on Average Contributed 
Capital.
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19.	 Tariff Reduction Reserve (Cont’d)

The range is limited to between 2% and 7% above the cost of the most recent long-term bonds issued by the Government of St. 
Lucia on the Regional Government Securities Market, with a minimum return of 10% and no cap.  In the event that the Allowable 
Rate of Return is higher than the permitted maximum, 50% of the excess is distributable to hotel and industrial customers. The 
Act provides for the Minister, by Order, to include “customers in need of special protection”.  The distribution is computed as an 
adjustment to the base tariff based upon consumption in the previous financial year.  In the event that the Rate of Return falls 
below the minimum of 10%, provision is also made in for the upward adjustment of the base tariff.

	 Under the provisions of these amendments, an amount of $2,427,280 (2007 - $5,239,813) is due to qualifying customers, and for 
this reporting period, has been included in trade and other payables.  

20.	 Ordinary Dividends	

2008 2007

Interim - 	 $0.65       (2007 - $0.65) per share $ 7,618,000 7,618,000
Final 	-		  $0.69       (2007 - $0.77) per share 8,086,800 9,024,400

$ 15,704,800 16,642,400

21.	 Other Gains, Net

2008 2007

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment $ 189,527 39,205
Foreign exchange gain 272,755 111,607

$ 462,282 150,812
	
22.	 Taxation

2008 2007

Current tax $ 12,846,728 9,691,523
Net change in deferred tax liabilities (Note 16) (1,884,612 ) (566,220)

$ 10,962,116 9,125,303
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22.	 Taxation (Cont’d)

	 Reconciliation of the applicable tax charge to the 
	 effective tax charges:

2008 2007

Profit before taxation $ 35,831,454 38,137,486

Tax at the statutory rate of 30% (2007 – 30%) 10,749,436 11,441,246

Tax effect of expenses not allowed for tax purposes (20,119
	
) 155,450

Tax effect of income not subject to tax (460,256) ) (2,716,797)
Tax effect of unadjusted differences (1,121,086 ) 245,404
Withholding tax on insurances 1,814,141 -

Actual tax charge $ 10,962,116 9,125,303

23.	 Earnings Per Share

	 Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit for the year of $24,869,338 (2007 - $29,012,183) by the weighted 
average number of issued ordinary shares of 11,720,000 (2007 - 11,720,000).

24.	 Related Parties	

Identification of related party
A party is related to the Company if:

Directly or indirectly the party:
Controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company.
Has an interest in the Company that gives it significant influence over the Company or
Has joint control over the Company.

The party is a member of the key management personnel of the Company
The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (ii)
The party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Company or any company that is a 
related party of the Company,

a.

i.
•
•
•

i.
ii.
iii.
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Related Parties (Cont’d)

	 Transactions with key management personnel
In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to executive officers and contributions to a post-
employment defined benefit plan on their behalf.  The key management personnel compensations are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Part-employment benefits
Termination benefits

	 The Company is controlled by the following entities:

2008 2007
% %

Emera St. Lucia Ltd. 20.00 20.00
First Citizens Bank Limited 20.00 20.00
National Insurance Corporation 16.79 16.79
Castries City Council 16.33 16.33
Government of St. Lucia 12.44 12.44

85.56 85.56

	 The remaining 14.44% (2007 – 14.44%) of the shares is widely held.

	 Transactions with shareholders during the year were as follows:

2008 2007
Revenue
National Insurance Corporation $ 3,009,836 2,986,406
Castries City Council 1,567,693 1,452,878
Government of St. Lucia and its corporations 22,856,121 21,767,289

$ 27,433,650 26,206,573

Finance Costs
National Insurance Corporation $ 401,809 473,758
First Citizens Bank Ltd. 5,161,877 4,807,969

$ 5,563,686 5,281,727

24.

•
•
•
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Related Parties (Cont’d)

Lease Charges
Government of Saint Lucia $ 100,000 100,000

The Government of St. Lucia receives a 10% discount on tariff sales for all accounts other than street lighting.

Loans from shareholders at the year ended were as follows:

2008 2007
National Insurance Corporation
At beginning of year $ 5,470,720 6,382,507
Repayments during year (942,553 ) (948,707 )

4,528,167 5,433,800
Accrued interest 31,194 36,920
At end of year $ 4,559,361 5,470,720

2008 2007
First Citizens Bank Limited
At beginning of year $ 74,960,106 59,501,867
Draw-downs during year - 22,163,434
Repayments during year (7,210,106 ) (7,031,304 )

67,750,000 74,633,997
Accrued interest 296,030 326,109
At end of year $ 68,046,030 74,960,106

The above loans are fully secured (Note 14).

	 Balances arising from supply of services at year end (Note 11) were as follows:

2008 2007

National Insurance Corporation $ 208,931 243,733
Castries City Council 13,657 3,945
Government of St. Lucia 3,768,672 2,865,476

$ 3,991,260 3,113,154

Transactions with key management personnel

Some key management personnel hold positions in other entities that result in them having significant influence over the 
financial or operating policies of these entities. The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding balances relating to 
entities over which they have significant influence were as follows:

24.
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Related Parties (Cont’d)

Transactions with key management personnel (Cont’d)

Director/Shareholder Company Transactions Transaction value Prepayments
2008 2007 2008 2007

Stephen McNamara McNamara & Co Legal fees 179,753 146,769 - -
Payments on behalf of 
third parties. 432,668 478,310 240,000 240,000

Irving John John’s Service Meter reading service fees 254,121 256,506 - -

Christopher G. Huskilson Emera Inc. With regards to Vieux Fort Energy Development Project
Payments made by Emera 
Inc. 1,146,913 437,467 11,138 -
Payments made by 
LUCELEC 202,299 137,665 - -

25.	 Expenses by Nature
	

2008 2007

Fuel cost over base $ 57,914,734 10,845,671
Fuel at base price 124,823,975 113,028,726
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 28,456,497 26,652,824
Amortisation of computer software 1,011,936 518,166
Repairs and maintenance 10,847,075 12,592,281
Employee benefit expense 17,702,257 16,130,910
Other operating expenses 20,108,712 19,303,553
Amortisation of consumer contributions (1,527,705 ) (1,527,675)

$ 259,337,481 197,544,456

26.	 Employee Benefit Expense

2008 2007
Wages and salaries $ 16,769,435 15,235,092
Pension costs – defined benefit plans 123,000 220,000
Grade III employees – defined benefit plan 809,822 675,818

$ 17,702,257 16,130,910

The number of permanent employees at December 31, 2008 was 214 (2007 – 203).

24.
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27.		  Financial Instruments

		  Credit risk
		  Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Notes Carrying Amounts

2008 2007
Available for sale financial assets 9 $ 5,642,575 3,452,103
Trade and other receivables 11 41,939,612 46,266,628
Cash and cash equivalents 12 10,847,374 3,148,936

$ 58,429,561 52,867,667

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was:
Carrying Amounts

2008 2007
Business $ 20,467,639 15,514,903
Residential 10,083,335 12,436,622

$ 30,550,974 27,951,525
Impairment losses:

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

Gross 2008 Impairment 2008 Gross 2007 Impairment  2007

Not past due $ 16,628,963 18,588 17,515,416 -
Past due 30-60 days 5,862,499 36,150 6,308,578 30,811
Past due 60- 90 days 2,135,877 61,454 1,818,962 41,055
Over 90 days 10,560,821 4,520,994 7,043,759 4,663,324

$ 35,188,160 4,637,186 32,686,715 4,735,190

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
     Carrying Amount

	          2008		         2007
Balance at January 1, 2008 $ 4,735,190 4,392,850
Impairment loss recognised 814,652 342,340
Over provision for prior year (912,656 ) -
Balance at December 31, 2008 $ 4,637,186 4,735,190

The allowance accounts in respect of trade and other receivables are used to record impairment losses unless the Company is 
satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is possible; at that point the amounts considered irrecoverable is written off 
against the financial asset directly.	
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27.		  Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
		  Liquidity risk							     

		  The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments:

December 31, 2008
Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows Under 1 year 1-2years 2-5 Years 

More than 5 
years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Secured bank loans                  $ (127,492,324) (149,869,624) (21,983,665) (37,520,541) (39,713,326) (50,652,092)
Bank overdraft (4,442) (4,442) (4,442) - - -
Trade and other payables (25,748,467) (25,748,467) (25,748,467) - - -
Dividend payable (8,251,153) (8,251,153) (8,251,153) - - -
                                               $ (161,496,386) (183,873,686) (55,987,727) (37,520,541) (39,713,326) (50,652,092)

December 31, 2007
Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows Under 1 year 1-2years 2-5 Years 

More than 5 
years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Secured bank loans                  $ (126,990,281) (170,784,212) (27,724,950) (23,423,365) (50,802,438) (68,833,459)
Bank overdraft (2,381,447) (2,381,447) (2,381,447) - - -
Trade and other payables (25,276,702) (25,276,702) (25,276,702) - - -
Dividend payable (9,168,635) (9,168,635) (9,168,635) - - -

                                               $ (163,817,065) (207,610,996) (64,551,734) (23,423,365) (50,802,438) (68,833,459)
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27.		  Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

		  Currency Risk					   
							     
		  The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk was based on notional amounts as follows: 	

	 XCD Euro USD GBP XCD Euro USD GBP

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Trade 
and other 
receivables $

	      
41,939,612) - - - 46,266,628 - - -

Secured bank 
loans (52,538,926) - (27,589,473) - (30,821,185) - (35,472,927) -
Trade payable 
and other 
payables (20,700,767)     	 (314)	 (1,805,041) (36,091) (21,458,323) (10,498) (857,261) (286,881)

Balance sheet 
exposure      $ (31,300,081) (314) (29,394,514) (36,091) (6,012,880) (10,498) (36,330,188) (286,881)

		  The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Reporting date
Average rate Spot rate

XCD 2008 2007 2008 2007
 
USD 1 	 $ 2.717 2.717 2.717 2.717
Euro 1 	 $ 4.007 3.627 3.836 3.900
GBP 1	 $ 5.054 5.303 3.940 5.291
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27.		  Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk					   
Profile 					   

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Carrying 
Amount 

2008

Carrying 
Amount 

2007
Fixed rate instruments:
Financial assets $ 16,489,949 4.08% 6,583,901 4.13%
Financial liabilities (127,496,766) 6.07% (129,371,728) 6.07%

$ (110,006,817)   (122,787,827)  
		

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.			 
			 
Fair values 						    
Fair values versus carrying amounts 						    
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet are as follows:

Carrying 
amount as at 
December 31, 

2008

Fair value as at 
December 31, 

2008

Carrying 
amount as at 
December 31, 

2007

Fair value as at 
December 31, 

2007

Available for sale financial asset $        5,642,575       5,642,575 3,452,103 3,452,103
Trade and other receivables    41,939,612    41,939,612 46,266,628 46,266,628
Cash and cash equivalents  10,847,374 10,847,374 3,148,936 3,148,936
Secured borrowings (127,492,324) (94,744,049) (126,990,281) (124,923,378)
Bank overdraft (4,442) (4,442) (2,381,447) (2,381,447)
Trade and other payables (25,748,467) (25,748,467) (25,276,702) (25,276,702)
Dividends payable (8,251,153) (8,251,153) (9,168,635) (9,168,635)

$ (103,066,825) (70,318,550) (110,949,398) (108,882,495)

The basis of determining fair values is disclosed in note 4. 				  

Interest rates used for determining fair values 
	 The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flow are based on the interest rates of government securities at the 		
	 reporting date.



82  | ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements | December 31, 2008
(Expressed In Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

28.	 Commitments

Capital commitments
Company had no capital commitments at December 31, 2008 (2007 - $410,000) in respect of work contracted.

Operating lease commitment
The future aggregate minimum lease payments on the operating lease is as follows:

2008 2007

Not later than 1 year $ 100,000 100,000
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -

$ 100,000 100,000

The above operating lease is for a term of twenty years.  A yearly rent of $100,000 is payable on the 1st day of May in each year 
of the first 5 years and thereafter at an annual rental to be negotiated between the parties by reference to the cost of living 
index as published in the Official Gazette of St. Lucia and by reference being paid for similar premises at Union at the time of 
such negotiations.

29.	 Self Insurance Fund

In prior years, the Company experienced difficulty in obtaining adequate and reasonably priced commercial insurance coverage 
primarily on the Transmission and Distribution assets.  The Board of Directors therefore gave approval for the establishment of a 
Self Insurance Fund to provide coverage for its assets in the event of natural disasters or similar catastrophic events.  The relevant 
enabling legislative process was completed during 2007.  Consequently, the Company ceased commercial insurance cover of its 
Transmission and Distribution assets and on an annual basis has, and will continue to place amounts into the Fund which will be 
independently managed under the terms of a registered Trust Deed.  
 
The amount of EC$5.6 million stated as “Available for sale financial assets” represents Fund amounts invested to date in the 
Unit Trust Corporation of Trinidad and Tobago. The Company also has access to a line of credit in the amount of EC$10 million 
which will be used, if required, in the event of damage to the Transmission and Distribution assets as disclosed in Note 5 
(Liquidity Risk) to these financial statements.
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30.	 Prior years’ adjustment

In respect of its senior employees, the Company contributes to the regional CDC Caribbean Pension Scheme, which is administered 
by Sagicor Life Inc.  In prior years, the company inadvertently omitted to account for and disclose the retirement benefit asset 
that resulted from actuarial valuations in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19.  This resulted in the understatement of 
the Company’s retirement benefit reserve at December 31, 2007 by $4,494,000, of which $4,274,000 relates to periods up to 
December 31, 2006.

The effect of the correction of this error is to:

(a)	 Increase the retirement benefit asset at December 31, 2006 by $4,274,000 and to increase the retirement benefit reserve by 
the same amount; and to increase the tax charge for the year by $1,282,000 and reduce the retained earnings at that date 
by the same amount.

(b)	 Increase the retirement benefit asset and the retirement benefit reserve at December 31, 2007, and the net profit for the year 
then ended by $220,000; and to increase the tax charge for the year and reduce the retained earnings at December 31, 2007 
by $66,000.

31.	 Comparatives

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year’s financial statement 
presentation.



84  | ST. LUCIA ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
OPERATING STATISTICS

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Generating Plant (kW)
     Available Capacity 76,000  76,000  65,800 65,800 56,800 56,800 66,400 66,400 66,400 59,900
     Firm Capacity  55,600  55,600  46,300 46,300 37,000 37,000 47,800 47,800 47,800 46,700
     Peak Demand 54,100  52,700  49,800 49,200 46,600 44,900 43,400 43,300 43,300 41,000
     Percentage growth in peak demand 2.7% 5.8% 1.2% 5.6% 3.8% 3.5% 0.2% 0.0% 5.6% 10.2%

Sales (kWh x 1000)
     Domestic 103,214  104,784  101,635 98,914 96,062 92,848 89,084 88,443 85,075 79,491
     Commercial (including Hotels) 170,624  168,151  160,895 158,483 151,451 141,374 133,996 137,017 131,863 120,628
     Industrial 18,626  15,789  12,982 12,522 12,345 13,185 12,673 12,954 13,250 12,271
     Street Lighting 9,510  9,117  8,886 7,480 6,544 4,713 3,634 5,002 3,893 3,271
Total Sales 301,975  297,841  284,398 277,399 266,402 252,120 239,387 243,416 234,081 215,661

Power Station and Office Use (kWh x 1000) 14,256  13,185  13,071 13,172 12,076 11,793 11,970 12,522 12,069 10,800
Losses (kWh x 1000) 36,105  34,672  33,291 33,043 30,062 35,070 34,356 30,601 30,595 29,734
Units Generated (kWh x 1000) 352,335  345,698  330,760 323,614 308,540 298,983 285,713 286,539 276,745 256,195

Percentage growth in units generated 1.9% 4.5% 2.2% 4.9% 3.2% 4.6% -0.3% 3.5% 8.0% 8.6%
Percentage growth in sales 1.4% 4.7% 2.5% 4.1% 5.7% 5.3% -1.7% 4.0% 8.5% 8.5%
Percentage Losses (excl. prior year sales adjs.) 10.2% 10.0% 10.1% 10.2% 10.2% 11.7% 12.0% 10.7% 11.1% 11.6%

Number of Consumers at Year End
     Domestic 51,444  50,163  48,697 47,417 46,347 44,980 43,460 42,548 41,097 39,825
     Commercial (Including Hotels) 6,169  5,938  5,714 5,474 5,307 5157 5,050 5,082 5,102 5,049
     Industrial 98  101  95 95 96 102 106 112 116 115
    Street Lighting (accounts) 7  7  3* 16 16 14 17 18 17 17

 57,718  56,209  54,509 53,002  51,766  50,253  48,633  47,760 46,332 45,006
Percentage growth 2.7% 3.1% 2.8% 2.4% 3.0% 3.3% 1.8% 3.1% 2.9% 4.7%

Average Annual Consumption    
       Per Customer (kWh)
     Domestic 2,006 2,089 2,087 2,086 2,073 2,064 2,050 2,079 2,070 1,996
     Commercial (including Hotels) 27,658 28,318 28,158 28,952 28,538 27,414 26,534 26,961 25,845 23,892
     Industrial 190,065 156,327 136,653 131,811 128,594 129,265 119,558 115,661 114,224 106,709

Diesel fuel consumed (Imp. Gall.) 17,870,149  17,729,217  17,009,188 16,666,145 15,961,905 15,436,122 14,736,896 14,860,580 14,388,680 13,276,298

* At their request the accounts of the Government of St. Lucia was rationalised from 15 to 2 and this total includes one other entity
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Units Sold (kWh x 1000) 301,975  297,841  284,398 277,399 266,402 252,120 239,387 243,417 234,080 215,661
Tariff Sales (Cents per kWh)  81.0  77.8 67.4 40.8 41.7 41.0 41.0 41.3 41.2 40.8
Fuel Charge (Cents per kWh)  19.0  3.4 12.3 32.1 22.6 18.3 14.9 16.6 18.7 11.5
Operating costs (Cents per kWh) 85.7 66.2 65.2 59.2 47.8 44.6 42.3 42.7 43.6 36.4 

     Fixed Assets (Net) 292,916 296,606  267,447 267,872 223,932 236,991 250,360 243,001 248,243 234,159
     Retirement Benefit Asset 8,847  7,768  2,850 2,637 2,395 1,983 1,520 1,083 843 -
     Available for Sale Investment 5,643  3,452  2,687 1,961 1,266 610 - - - -
     Capital Work in Progress 9,582 6,518  11,055 9,297 49,930 15,896 5,654 19,957 13,485 3,869
     Current Assets 68,527 63,419  54,460 60,000 54,878 43,519  44,873  47,879 45,196 51,731
     Current Liabilities (52,483) (57,776) (57,545) (66,625) (48,165) (35,743) (38,144) (46,451) (41,751) (45,315)
Total 333,032 319,987  280,954 275,142 284,236 263,256 264,263 265,469 266,016 244,443

     Share Capital 80,163  80,163  80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163 80,163
     Retained Earnings 64,462 58,330  53,932 46,028 49,081 40,831 35,038 30,279 24,529 18,187
     Other Reserves & Consumer 
Contributions 37,275 

 
32,315 

 
25,328 24,332 24,515 25,250 24,628 23,708 23,761 22,340

     Long Term Debt 110,754  107,288  81,360 84,916 88,848 75,927 83,988 91,983 99,216 88,047
     Other Long Term Liabilities 40,378 41,891  40,171 39,703 41,629 41,085 40,446 39,336 38,347 35,706
Total 333,032 319,987  280,954 275,142 284,236 263,256 264,263 265,469 266,016 244,443

Summarised Balance Sheet (EC$000’s)
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2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Operating Income  44,555  45,470  42,210 38,974 44,453 37,779 32,837 37,796 38,995 35,116
     Interest Expense 8,997  7,201  7,131 6,074 5,686 7,344 8,805 9,360 7,574 8,259
     Foreign Exchange (Gain) Loss/ Other (462) (151) (503) 116 15 288 (37) - - (5)
Net Income before Tax  35,831 38,137  35,582 32,784 38,752 30,147 24,069 28,436 31,421 26,862
     Taxation 10,962  9,125  8,585 7,083 10,628 10,530 7,768 8,968 10,294 8,261
Net Income after Tax  24,869 29,012  26,997 25,701 28,124 19,616 16,301 19,468 21,127 18,601
Dividend Declared 15,705 16,642  16,642 15,715 19,462 13,361 11,105 13,478 14,711 11,819
Retained Earnings for Year 9,164 12,370  10,355 9,986 8,662 6,256 5,196 5,990 6,416 6,782
Retained Earnings beginning of Year 58,330  52,650  46,028 49,081 40,831 35,038 30,279 24,529 18,187 11,405
Transfer to Retirement Benefit & Reserves (1,079) (644)  636 (242) (412) (463) (437) (240) (74) -
Tariff Reduction Reserve (1,953) (6,046) (3,087) (4,557) - - - - - -
Prior Year Adjustment - - (1,282) (8,240) - - - - - -
Retained Earnings end of Year 64,462  58,330  52,650 46,028 49,081 40,831 35,038 30,279 24,529 18,187

Return on Rate Base 17.77% 21.42% 18.91% 19.67% 12.91% 10.52% 9.70% 11.08% 10.68% 10.47%
Earnings per share (EC$)  $2.12  $2.48  $2.30 $2.19 $2.40 $1.67 $1.39 $1.66 $1.80 $1.58
Dividend per share (EC$)  $1.34  $1.42  $1.42 $1.34 $1.66 $1.14 $0.95 $1.15 $1.26 $1.00
Debt/Equity Ratio 47/53 48/52 43/57 43/57 $0.79 $0.82 $1.00 $1.13 48/52 49/51

The return on rate base calculations changed with effect from 2005 in accordance with Amendment Act No 12 of 2006 and 13 of 2006.

Summarised Income Statement (EC$000’s)
Operating Revenues
     Electricity 244,669  231,676  191,730 113,334 111,171 103,455 98,213 100,450 96,501 87,923
     Fuel Surcharge 57,448  10,178  34,962 88,961 60,147 46,110 35,495 40,492 43,773 24,878
     Other 1,082  657  943 848 545 749 481 842 837 715
Total 303,199  242,511  227,635 203,143 171,863 150,314 134,189 141,784 141,111 113,516
Operating Costs
     Fuel (Cost over Base) 57,915  10,846  34,712 89,170 60,114 45,669 35,673 40,367 43,289 24,678
     Generation O&M 133,284  121,317  91,504 13,682 15,202 14,084 13,208 14,498 12,459 12,564
     Transmission & Distribution 16,323  16,810  14,888 14,080 11,802 12,806 12,519 11,925 12,373 10,130
     Administrative & Selling 21,844 21,180  19,558 23,352 18,387 19,482 20,344 18,305 16,356 14,054
     Depreciation 29,468  27,171  24,763 23,885 21,905 20,493 19,608 18,893 17,639 16,974
Total 258,833 197,324  185,425 164,169 127,410 112,534 101,352 103,988 102,116 78,400
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